
RETAIL STORE ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN 
FINAL QUESTIONS 

 
1) Is the NHLC looking for a full proposal including scope, schedule, staffing and fixed fee proposal, or are 

they looking for a Statement of Qualifications and hourly fee schedule? 
Statement of Qualifications and hourly fee schedule. 

 
2) Is there a project Budget? 

No – Services will be used as needed 
 
3) Is there a project Schedule? 

No 
 
4) How many stores are part of the project? 

All could be – see answer #2 
 
5) How large are the stores? 

They vary 3,000 to 20,000 sq.ft. 
 
6) Where are the stores located? 

Throughout New Hampshire mostly in southern area 
 
7) Is there existing conditions documentation available or will all of the stores to be included in the project 

need to be field verified? 
Once a store need is identified it should be field verified. 

 
8) Does the project include both free-standing and outlet stored? 

Yes 
 
9) Is any exterior work anticipated, or will the scope be focused on interior work only? 

Could be both but primarily interior 
 
10) Will there be any physical renovations, such as moving walls, or will the work consist of new casework, 

furnishings and equipment? 
Design & Presentation 

 
11) Will the project include any new finishes such as flooring, ceilings, painting, etc.? 

Yes 
 
12) Will there be any accessibility or other code upgrades? 

Yes all 
 
13) Will any of the stores require additions? 

Potentially 
 
14) Does the NHLC anticipate the need for any mechanical, plumbing or structural upgrades? 

Potentially 
 
15) Are all of the stores included as part of the project the same layout, or will multiple sets of construction 

drawings be required? 
All store layouts vary based on size. 

 
16) Does the project include new stores, either free-standing or tenant fit-up? 

Yes 
 



17) Do any of the stores require exterior site work, including; paving, landscaping, site lighting etc.? 
Potentially 
 

18) Does your anticipated work include only renovations or is there also new construction? 
Potentially both 

 
19) The RFP mentions lighting and electrical but not the other disciplines.  Do you plan to include any 

renovations to HVAC or structure? 
Potentially 

 
20) Do you plan to upgrade all of the stores? 

As budget permits 
 

21) You mention that subcontracting is not permitted.  Does this preclude the use of engineering 
consultants for specific disciplines such as HVAC, etc? 
We will modify the final contract to include the use of subcontractors with NHLC approval. 

 
22) Is this RFP intended to adapt one (1) store location, or is the NHLC soliciting proposals for prototypical 

retrofits to many locations? 
Proposal is on an as needed basis, there could be one or multiple locations. 
Specifically: 

  
23) Project Need - This sounds like you’re looking for interior design services to renovate a existing store? 

Project need could include multiple locations. 
 

24) Key success criteria - Your looking for a more functional store. Could you outline some of the problems 
you have now with functionality? 
We want to maintain the present functionality and upscale our presentation 

 
25) Project Deliverables- You mention a proposed store. Do you have a location, size, style?  Is this a 

prototype ? Is it new construction or a renovation ? 
Project could include all of the above 
 

26) " Drawings for the buildings"   Is there more then one building? 
Could be multiple 
 

27) "Develop a Schematic design.."   There's a lot more to typical Schematic Design then just finish and 
lights. Most likely there would not be any specific light fixture selection at this point in the project. More 
likely the electrical engineer and architect would work on a narrative describing the lighting approach for 
your approval.  Are you looking for typical full service AIA scope of work?   
We are going to have to examine the need for each project and determine based on each need. 
 

28) Additional Services -  I don't think that there is any way to put fixed pricing on these without sitting down 
with you and defining the scope.  
Maybe that was not your intent?  As a additional service, could these items just be handled hourly or 
maybe by allowance? 
It should be handled hourly. 
 

29) Page 13, Subcontractor -  All architects in the state of NH will need to subcontract out Structural, 
HVAC, Electrical, Fire protection, Sprinkler, plumbing...etc.  Unless you are not asking for these 
services in your proposal? ( I don't think these services are called for anywhere in the RFP, this will be 
a large number to add later)  
See answer for question #21. 



In review, what I'm really looking for is something that tells me what you want, i.e. 
  
Full architectural services including MEP, Structural, Fire protection and civil design suitable for a public 
design, bid, build building. The use shall be for a state run retail liquor store. The building square 
footage is 10,000 s.f, one story, 10% space for storage with in-store toilet rooms, parking for 300 cars 
50 tractor trailers.  The construction budget is $$$.  The schedule is ....   The architect shall carry 
interior design time for interior store layout.  The site is currently owned by the NHLC and is located at 
... 
  
I've guessed at the above numbers, but something like this would be very useful in putting together a 
fixed fee proposal such as what you've asked for.  If these things are unknown at this time you could 
hire an architect for Pre-Design to review and meet with your team to help develop this criteria prior to 
moving ahead with full design.  
Our goal is to select an architect/Design firm that can assist in improving the presentation of 
our retail stores throughout the state as budget permits.  

 
Page 4 Project Deliverables/Minimum Architectural Services: 

30) 1st Bullet: Does NHLC have a project timeline or schedule that can be shared? 
Not at this point. 
 

31) 2nd Bullet: Can NHLC share any examples of “successfully designed” existing stores for use in 
responding to this RFP? 
Plaistow, Hampstead and Meredith 
 

32) 3rd Bullet: What is the size of the retail store used as the basis for this RFP? Will there be more than 
one size of store? Will the solution need to be scaleable, and if so, what should we use for the range of 
scaleable solutions? Does the architectural design work include the store’s exterior/storefront or only 
the interior? 
No one store is the single basis for this RFP.  There could be more than one location and the 
size of the store may vary from 3,000 to 20,000 sq.ft.  The design could include exterior but 
would primarily interior. 
 

33) 6th Bullet: You refer to Schematic Design. Typically, there is a Design Development phase between 
Schematic Design and Stamped Architectural Construction Drawings. Do you envisage this step as part 
of your typical process? 
The goal is to complete projects as they arise. 

 
34) 7th Bullet: Are MEP/FP engineering documents required as part of the Stamped Architectural 

Construction Drawing package? 
In most cases this applies to new construction 

 
Page 4 Standard available Construction Administration (CA) services: 

35) Do you have a typical period of construction in mind (e.g., 10 weeks, 15 weeks, etc.) upon which the 
CA services should be based?  
Depends on the complexity of the project. 

 
Page 4 Additional Services: 

36) Are you looking for the identification of scope and fees for the 5 items listed as additional services? 
No, just hourly rates. 

 


